CT-35
CEDAR HILL ca. 1730

As the only 18th. century example of cruciform
domestic architecture now standing in Southern Maryland,
Cedar Hill is of great architectural significance. Of
brick construction and one and one half storys in height
it is three bays in length and has an exterior chimney
at each end excepting the two story porch tower at the
facade. The center hall still retains an early stair
though it has not been determined whether or not it is
original. The north, ground floor room, is completely
sheathed with fielded panels, this treatment believed to
be original to the house. Other interior woodwork dates
from the late eighteenth and early nineteenth centuries.
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* ' [7, DESCRIPTION - 3

o (Check One) N R

.‘. CONDITION [ Excellent (3t Good ] Fair 3 Deteriorated 3 Ruins " [0 Unexpased ':,i

_ ‘ (Check One) . (Chlck One) ?

4 O Alrered {3X Unaltered ] Moved . K] Originel Site P';,

-

Y DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (/f known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Cedar Hill is one of the few remaining cruciform dwelling

v houses existing in Maryland, It is built of brick and stands
i one-and-one-half stories tall, except the porch' tower, which is
~ two full stories. All the walls are laid in Flemish bond above
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A a single-step water table. The chimney stacks-are laid in Eng-
> ' lish bond above the "shoulders" of the fireplaces. With the
& exception of the northwest door and window of the porch tower, :
s there are segmental arches above the windows. The former have
A flat brick arches of a different color, reminiscent of rubbed
R brick. The basement arches have segmental undersides and flat
SR uppersides.
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: The.southeast part of the cross consists of a large, full-size,

ﬁ'g. _ onerand-¢ne-half story section. The opposite side consists of
12 a small cubical or porch. The chimneys on the gables of the

¥ main axis are on the outside of the wall, while the chimney on

" the southeast is fully within the gable, allowing a stair to be

constructed in one corner (northeast).

338

Py

Beneath the main axis and tower is a full cellar. (In the
southeast is a partial cellar dug after the original construc-
tion and probably during the twentieth century when heating was
installed). The huge fireplace in the southwest part of the
cellar definitely suggests the room was used as a kitchen, but
_ this contradicts evidence found in eighteenth century inventor-
ies which locates the kitchen on the first floor of the house.
N v ' ) . E N - L ;' . . R . .. "... -.-}i--a
The southwest cellar room is separated from another room, cor-
responding to;the stair hall above, by two large semi~-circular
brick arches. A stair to the first floor hall rises below the
..main stair .to the second floor. Cedar Hill was constructed
with summer beams in the basement ceiling.
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R On the main floor, the porch has an exterior door, two large
N windows, and an arched opening to the stair hall. Beneath the
Yo windows are seats supported on scrolled uprights extending the
:}ﬁ“z length of the wall. Since the window and door trim matches
R that in most of the house, -the tall arched opening between the
?&ﬁ? porch and the stair hall seems incomplete because it lacks the
o keystone and imposts in the trim.
SR L
G The stair has a huge raised panel soffit, square newels, the
T first with flutes, a well-shaped hand rail and square balus-
f#gﬁ ters. The newels and rail are walnut; the balusters are
P340 painted. '
iy

(See Continuation Sheet)

. 1Inventories and Accounts (Calvert County), 1714, Liber 36C
- folio 25, Hall of Records, Annapolis, Maryland.
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7. DESCRIPTION continued

Northeast off the hall is the parlor with one raised panel wall,
paneled window seats and wainscot, and glazed corner cabinet
with an arch like that in the hall. The cabinet is decorated
with a carved shell and fluted columns. A late mantel has been
applied over the paneling, reducing the opening of the fire-
place. Late Federal trim with corner blocks has been applied
around the door and windows.

4
}

On the opposite side of .the hall is a smaller room that has orig-
inal window trim and a Federal mantel with an opening smaller .
than that of the original fireplace. Beyond the hall (southwest)
is a cross-hall, or corridor, with exterior doors on both ends,
and the preséent dining room. As in the two front rooms the size
of the dining&oom fireplace was reduced and trimmed with a Fed-
eral mantel, this one with gouge carving. Flanking the fire-
place is an enclosed stair and a passage leading to the present
kitchen which was enlarged from a closet with a small window. A
large string of frame additions is built on the southeast side
of the house.

On the second story, the rooms correspond with those below. The
porch chamber has a very low ceiling and three windows with a

superb view of the Patuxent River. Each room has very simple i
trim and two panel doors. Above the diningroom there has been .

some alteration to accomodate a modern bath. '

Most of the construction details are exposed in the attic which
extends above the whole house. Vo :
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[ Pre-Columbiont (] 16th Century (¢ 18th Century
[3 15th Century (O 17th Century [ 19th Century

[J 20th Century

APECIFIC OATH!S) (If Applicable and Known)

C. 1730-C. 1750

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More se Appropriate)

Aboriginal {0 Education O Politicel (3 Urban Plenning
[ Prehisteric (] Enginesring [ Religion/Phi. (3 Other (spacity)
(3 Hisrerle 1 Industry lasaphy

O Agricuiture J Inveniion {1 Science

€] Architecturs 1 Landscape [0 Sculpture

0O An Architectyre [C1 Social/Mumen.

[0 Commerce (3 Literature itorion

(O Communications ) Military (7] Theoter

O Conurvoﬂo, [ Music [} Transpertaiion

STATEMENTY OF SIGNIFICANCE

Cedar Hill is significant as an example of a cruciform house
built in the eighteenth century -that is typical of -seventeenth
century architecture. Bond Castle in Calvert County, which
burned in the twentieth centurX, was a better known example of
the same type of architecture. "

The exterior and the floor plan of Cedar Hill correspond to
documents deicribing the house of John Bigger, which was built
before 1714. However, the interior details, the support sys-
tem in the basement, and the roof construction indicate a date
in the second quarter of the eighteenth century. The absence
of Calvert County records before the 1880's compounds the dif-
ficulty of.documenting the date of Cedar Hill.

The name Cedar Hill dates from the nineteenth century. The
house and its surrounding lands were originally called Bigger,
after its first owner, John Bigger. A Calvert County tobacco

'\|planter,:Bigger supplemented his income -through mercantile

activities. He bought goods in England and sold them to his
neighbors in return for their tobacco. As Aubry .Land of the
University of Georgia has indicated, most cglonial Maryland
fortunes were founded by merchant planters. In addition to
his business life, Bigger served in the Calvert County militia,
in the colonial assembly, and as a treasurer of King William
School in Annapolis.
o (See Continuation Sheet)

1See Hugh Morrison,'EarIy American Architecture from the First
Colonial Settlements to the National Period, (New York: 1952),
160~2. \ .

1 L]

[}

21nventories and Accounts (Calvert County), 1714, Liber 36cC,
folio 25, Hall of Records, Annapolis, Maryland.

3Aubry Land, lecture given at the Maryland Historical Society,
Baltimore, Maryland, November 29, 1970. Dr. Land's lecture
will appear in the summer 1972 issue of the 'Maryland Histori-
cal Magazine. .- '
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8. SIGNIFICANCE continued

After John Bigger's death, his considerable estate and cruciform
house became the property of his widow, Anne Bigger, who subse-
quently married Patrick Andrew. Andrew continued living in
Bigger's house after his wife died, even though John Bigger's 3
will had stipulated that the property was to go to his nephew, ¥
Kendal Head. Head conveyed the title to James Carroll of Annapo- |
lis who brought suit against Andrew and won an ejectment. b

In the 1730's, the house was rented to, and then bought by,
Thomas Crompton. Architectural details in Cedar Hill indicate
that the house was built during the Crompton period. Documentary
evidence indicates that he did live in a cruciform house similar
to Cedar Hill.*4

Crompton died in 1743. His widow married James Weems, a wealthy
Calvert County planter who held Bigger in trust for Thomas
Crompton's son Thomas Crompton until 1767. The house and land
remained in the Crompton family passing to Thomas Crompton's

(d. 1773) daughter, Mary Crompton Gantt, and then to his grand-
son, Dr. Thomas Gantt (d. 1829). After Dr. Gantt's death, Cedar
Hill became the property of his son, Virgil Gantt, who operated
a farm there until 1871,

The next owner was Mason Locke Weems, the President of Weems
Steamboat Line which operated passenger boats on the Chesapeake
Bay between Baltimore and southern Maryland. The house had a
successgion of owners in the twentieth century. In the 1940's,
Charles Smith Hamilton and his wife restored Cedar Hill. The
current owners, Mr. and Mrs. Eric Schneider, are continuing a
restoration program for the house.

4Inventories (Calvert County) -Liber 31, folio 19, Hall of Records|,
Annapolis, Maryland.
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Morrison, Hugh.'W Early American Architecture from the First
Colonial Settlements to the National Period. New York:
Oxford, l1952.

Stein, Charles Francis. History of Calvert County. n.p.: the
author and the Calvert County Historical Society, 1960.
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(Or “Gantt House™,

Lighteentl Century

Cruetform i plan like old “Bognd
Castle”, 1t stands upon a hilloch. The
chimneys rise to a great height.

The vestibule  seats  have serolled
supports, and an arch forms the ]|
entrance-way. The square stair newel
has flutes and there are square bulnsters
hke those of the “Taney House™. Tl
Kitchen . was probably scparate. Al
twelve walls have the Flemish bon.

The well-known Gantt family of
Calvert County was comnected with this
house. Thomas Gantt died in Calvert
County in 1691.

Views: From West and from Norlh.
Dimensions:

Grade to floor, 37.

Ceiling, 9-9.

Sul, 35.

Panes, 9% by 12.
Wall, 14. -
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The Noises at Cedar Hill

(ldar Hill in Calvert County

near Barstow is the only example of cruciform domestic architec-
ture now standing in southern Maryland. The brick one-and-a-half-
story house, center of a tobacco plantation, was built in the early
1700s on 5,000 acres of land deeded in 1666. It was the second-
largest homesite in the county. Cedar Hill’s imaginative builder is
thought to have been John Bigger, whose name was found on an
eighteenth-century deed. The builder, whoever he may have been,
was apparently something of an engineer and astronomer, for he
purposely constructed the house in the shape of a cross. Intriguing-
ly, the cross is positioned so that twice a year, during the spring and
fall equinoxes, the sun passes directly over the long axis of the
building, from the front door to the back of the house. Consequent-
ly six months of the year the sun rises and sets on the north side of
the house, and the other six months of the year on the south side.
(Several additions have been made to the original structure, the
most recent one in 1938.) Cedar Hill is also unusual in that it is one
of the few old homes that appears to have been constantly oc-
cupied.

Twenty years ago, Eric Schneider first saw Cedar Hill and
decided to buy it and rent it out until he was able to live in it him-
self. The first stories of strange happenings at Cedar Hill began with
some of Eric’s tenants. One woman used to complain that a throw

{59}
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)Ghosts &’ Haunted Houses of Maryland

rug she used in a downstairs hallway was always being rolled up and
pushed to one side of the hall no matter how many times she
straightened it out.

Harry and Lenore Markard’s unexplained experiences in the
home in the early 1980s began the day they and their children
moved in, when a door inexplicably slammed shut behind Harry’s
brother, who was helping with the move. The television set and
several light switches would turn on by themselves and one of
Lenore’s sisters was once mysteriously tapped on the shoulder by an
unseen hand while visiting at the house. Yet another time, Harry
and his nephew were carrying wood through the kitchen when a
door slammed shut by itself behind them. The same nephew
thought that he saw a man dressed in a Civil War uniform standing
in the den one night.

The most disturbing incident that happened to the Markards
during their year-and-a-half stay at Cedar Hill involved Harry. For
some time, the family had heard odd noises coming from the attic
area. Harry decided to investigate; after searching the attic without
having been able to locate anything, he turned to come back down
the attic stairs. Suddenly, he felt something from behind push him
and he fell the length of the stairway. Fortunately, he was not
seriously injured, although he still carries a scar where a nail on the
side of the stairway caught his arm on the way down. No one was
ever able to find out the reason for the seemingly unprovoked
attack.

The ghost, however, is not without some sense of humor. On
one occasion, Harry was trying to pull the basement door shut but
was unable to, as it kept being pulled by someone or something on
the other side. After this tug-of-war scene had gone on for several
minutes, Harry decided to give up. He shrugged his shoulders and
said, “Okay, I don’t care.” Immediately, the door swung shut.

According to Harry and Lenore, the supernatural activities at
Cedar Hill came to an end after they decided to clean up an area
they had found near the house that contained the graves of some
much earlier residents. Weeding and minor adjustments to fallen
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gravestones seemed to appease Cedar Hill’s unseen presence and
the Markards, at least, were no longer troubled by strange events in
their home.

The unexplained noises and activities at the old house were
not to be stopped for long, however. Shortly after Eric and his wife
Carol took up permanent residence at Cedar Hill, they began to
hear the sound of a rocking chair rocking back and forth. The
sound seems to come from the attic, and both day and night s high-
ly audible in the master bedroom directly below it. Eric says that
many nights the sound continues for hours—sometimes, he sus-
pects, long after he and Carol have fallen off to sleep. Eric has not
been able to find any explanation for the rocking chair noise al-
though, like Harry, he has searched the attic thoroughly. Maybe it
is time for the old graveyard to be tidied up again.
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CEDAR HILL

i (Or ““Gantt House”)
Eighteenth Century

Cruciform in plan like old “Bond
Castle”, it stands upon a hillock. The
chimneys rise to a great height.

The vestibule seats have scrolled
supports, and an arch forms the Hall
entrance-way. The square stair newel
has flutes and there are square balusters
like those of the “Taney House”. The
Kitchen was probably separate. All
twelve walls have the Flemish bond.

The well-known Gantt family of
Calvert County was connected with this
house. Thomas Gantt died in Calvert
County in 1691.

Views: From West and from North.
Dimensions:

Grade to floor, 37.

Ceiling, 9-9.

Sill, 35.

Panes, 9% by 12.

Wall, 14.

K. dr

(T

Forman, H. Chandlee
1982 Early Manor and Plantation Houses of Maryland.

Baltimore: Bodine & Associates, Inc.
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